Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Form 990 Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

Depariment of the Treasury
Internal R Service
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**% PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY **

P Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2021

Open to Public
Inspection

A For the 2021 calendar year, or tax year beginning OCT 1, 2021 andending SEP 30, 2022

B g::;m I‘f) L C Name of organization D Employer identification number
ohange | ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC.
thtnge | Doing business as 41-1406591
] Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone numher
Final 10 YORKTON COURT 651-481-9320
termin-

ated

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

mene?l ST. PAUL, MN 55117

return

Applica-
tion

(G Grossraceipts $ 3 ,335,995.

H(a) Is this a group return

F Name and address of principal officer: LISA DUNLAP

pendnd | SAME AS C ABOVE

for subordinates? DYas No
H(b) Are all subordinates includad? |___|Ye5 I:I No

| Tax-exempt status: s01(ey3) [ ] 501(c) (

) _(insert no.) D 4947(ay(1) or |:| 527 If "No," attach a list. See instructions

J Website: p> ACAINC.ORG

H(c) Group exemption number P

K_Form of organization; [X | Corporation [ | Trust [ ] Association [ | Other p>

Partl

| L Year of formation: 1.9 81| m State of legal domicile: MN

Summary

Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities; ACA'S MISSION IS TQO SERVE

CHILDREN BY SUPPORTING THOSE WHO CARE FOR THEM.

Check thisbox B [ ifthe organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.

8
&
£l 2
% 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) |8 4
:: 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 14 4
ol 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2021 (Part v, line2a2) . |8 9
| 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . ettt n s enntennnnenns | O 4
§ 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a B
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part |, line 11 sy 17D 0.
Prior Year Current Year
»| 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIIl, line 1h) 2,876,057. 3,335,682.
% 9  Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 0. 0.
2| 10 Investment income (Part VIll, column (A), lines 3, 4, and Td] . 65. 53
“[ 11 Other revenue (Part VIll, column (&), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, Sc, 10¢, and 11e) -691. 260.
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIll, column (A), line 12) 2,875,431. 3,335,995.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 2,374,827. 2,891,095,
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0. 0.
g| 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5 10) 390,384. 349,939.
a| 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line11e) 0. 0.
al b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) P> 0.
il 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) . 118,746. 124,887.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column {A), Tine 25) 2,883,957. 2;365;92L:
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 -8,526. -29,926.
5 Beginning of Gurrent Year End of Year
‘ES 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 572,003. 530,978,
% 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 323,410, 342,668.
25 20 Net assets o fund balances, Subtract line 21 from llne S e———— 248,593. 188,310.
[Part Il | Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, corracl and corpplete. Deglaration nﬁ)ar\:ﬁpa}( (other than-ufficer) fs-hased on all information of which preparer has any knowled . /-\ L7
. } . I k) & 7
Sign /) Signature of officer & \}MJ (7
Here LISA DUNLAP, EXEC DIRECTOR
Type or print name and title
Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check |:| PTIN
Paid MARIE PRIMUS, CPA LLARIE PRIMUS, CPA 04/26/23 f It P01272184
Preparer | Firm's name _p BERGANKDV, LTD. Firm's EIN . 41 1431613
Use Only |Firm'saddressy,. 220 PARK AVE S

ST. CLOUD, MN 56301

Phone no.320-251-7010

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions

Yes D No

132001 12-09-21 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Form 990 (2021)



Form 990 (2021) ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 page2
| Part 1l | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis Part Il .. .. L

1

Briefly describe the organization's mission:

TO BE A SOURCE OF PUBLIC EDUCATION; INFORMATION, SERVICES, AND
RESEARCH REGARDING PARENTS, FAMILIES, CHILDREN, AND TO THOSE PERSONS
AND ORGANTZATIONS WHO PROVIDE SERVICES TO THEM; BY PROVIDING SERVICES
WHICH FACILITATE THE PSYCHOLOGICAL AND PHYSICAL DEVELOPMENT OF

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

ko T R o T I, G F 4
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? . DYes No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a

(Codn: )(”. 5 3.326,8230 including grants of $ 2,891;095- )(Ruuanuas )
THE ORGANIZATION HAS BEEN IN PARTNERSHIP WITH THE USDA CHILD AND ADULT
FOOD CARE PROGRAM (CACFP) SINCE 1981, PROVIDING EDUCATION, TRAINING,

AND RETMBURSEMENT TO LICENSED HOME CHILDCARES, PARENTS, AND COMMUNITIES
THAT SERVE CHILDREN THROUGHOUT MINNESOTA.

ADULTS' & CHILDREN'S ALLIANCE THROUGH OUR PROVIDER EDUCATION & TRAINING
(PET) PROGRAM PROVIDES EDUCATION AND TRAINING AROUND THE CACFP PROGRAM
ENROLLMENT, HEALTH & NUTRITION AND ADULT CPR AND FIRST AID THAT
COMPLEMENT CHILDCARE PROFESSIONALS AND THEIR HOME-BASED CHILDCARE
BUSINESS AND THE COMMUNITY. OUR SERVICES AND PRODUCTS ARE FOR ALL AND
TO IMPACT THE HEALTH AND GROWTH DEVELOPMENT OF OUR FUTURE GENERATIONS.

4b  (code: ) (Expenses § including grants of § ) (R § )

4c  (code: ) l:" T & including grants of § ) {Fluvanua.% )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)

!Exganses & including grants of § ) (m $ )
4e Total program service expenses P 3,326,823.
Form 990 (2021)
132002 12-08-21
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Form 990 (2021) ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 page3
| Part 1V | Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
If "Yes," complete Schedule A .. 1| X
2 Is the organization required to complate Scheduta B, Schedute of Contr!butors? Sea 1nstruct|ons __________________________________________ X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part| —................ 3 X
4  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbylng actlt.rltles or have a sectlon 501(h] electlon in effect
during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Il . S I X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501 (c'j{G) Drgamzatlon that receives membarshlp dues assessments or
similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-197? |f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part lll . 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for whlch donors have the nght to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? |[f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part | 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? Jf "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part Il .. 7. X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets‘? ,lf "Yes," compje[e
Schedule D, Part Iil . .. |8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount In Pat‘t X llne 21 for escrow or cust0d1al account I!abtllty, serve as a l::ustcdlan for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV .. 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a reiated argamzatmn hotd assets in dnnor restrlcted endowments
or in quasi endowments? f "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartV/ ................. - 10 X
11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes then completa Schedute D Parts VI VII VIII I)( or X
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and eqmpment in Part X, line 10?7 f "Yes," complete Schedule D,
Part Vi ..o e M2l X
b Did the organization report an amount for mvestments other secunt:es in Part X Ime 12 that is 5% or more ot |ts total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ................ oo 11D X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of |ts tota!
assets reported in Part X, line 167 f "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part VIl . g e 11 [ X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of lts tctal assets reported in
Part X, line 167 /f "Yes, " complete Schedlule D, Part IX . s 1114 X
e Did the organization report an amount for other ||ab|||t|es in Part X, Ilne 25? .'f "yes " comp,rete Schedute D, Part x e L 11e X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? if "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ............ | 11f X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? ¢ "Yes," complete
Schedule D, Parts Xl and XII .. o ||Ja0l]. B
b Was the organization lncluded in consolldated tndependent audlted flnanctai ststements for the tax year?
If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X/ and Xll is optional ... . |12b X
13  Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? If "Yes, " complete Schedule E SRR | |18 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? ... | 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundrslsmg. bl.ISinBSS
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Paris | and IV .. sy | | 140 X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3 more than $5 BD{] of grants or other asststance to or for any
foreign organization? /f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts lland IV ... s (|10 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other asmstanca to
or for foreign individuals? /f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV — kT X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professmnai fundraismg services on Part IX
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? f "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions P X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contnbutmns on Part VIII Ilnes
1c and 8a? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part Il .................. cevereereens |18 X
19  Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gamlng sctnntles on Part VIII Ime Qa‘? .|tf "Yes 9
complete Schedule G, Part Ill . SR 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hOSPItﬂi fac|l|t:es? .’! “Yes, “ compfete Schedute H et nrns e tereeneennnanene | 208 X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to thls retum? eeeereeesseresiseieanneannns |20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? /f "Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts 1and ll ..., | 21 X
132003 12-09-21 Form 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021) ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591  page 4
[Part IV [ Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes | No

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? f "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts land il —............... e |22 X

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensatlon of the organlzatlon s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees?
Schedule J .

If "Yes," complete

23 X
24a Did the orgamzatlon have a tax exempt 'nnnd issue wuth an outsiandlng pnnctpal amount of more than $1 D[) 000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 [f "Yes, " answer lines 24b through 24d and complete
Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a .. .. ettt | 242 X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax exempt bonds bayond a temporary parlod exceptlon'i' 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-exemptbonds? ... ... SRR - | =
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstandlng at any ilme durlng th& year‘? e L 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c){4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part| ................. . | 252 X
b |s the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prlor year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? Jf "Yes," complete
Schedule L, Part | 25b X

26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X Ilna 5 or 22 for recewablas from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il .........cccoooeeeeeeeeeerann. 26 X
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee,
creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these persons? Jf"ves," complete Schedule L, Part Il ......... | 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see the Schedule L, Part IV,
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? |f
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV .

27

28a X
b A family member of any individual descnbed in Ime 28a? ,'{ "Yes L compfete Schedm’e ,'_ Part ;v 28b X
¢ A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b‘? H‘
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV .. s OSSP 1 - - X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25 DDD in non- cash contflbutmns? Jf "Yes cgmp:e(e Schedu.‘e M eereeeriiniis 129 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservatlon
contributions? /f "Yes," complete Schedulé M ... T = X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dlssol\.re and cease operatlons" ;{ 'Yes i compfete Schedu.'e N Pari .' . - 1 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? jf "Yes," complete
Schedule N, Partll ... SRR X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an enhty drsregarded as separa‘te from tha orgamzatlon under Regulatlons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? (f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part | ................. s oS X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? |f "Yes," complete Schedu!e H Pa;f H m‘ or ;V and
Part V, line 1 s s X
35a Did the organization haue a controlled entlty w1th|n the meanlng of section 512{b)(13)‘? svises. 1852 X
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled enhty
within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . s .. |85b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations, Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non- chantabla related organlzatmn?
If “Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . st | |LS0 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of |t3 actwmes through an entnty that is not a reIated organlzatlon
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part Vi ................... | .87 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197
Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O . e, | 38 [ X
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance |
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part N E|
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable .. | 1a 0
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to uendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize WINNers? ..., | 1€
132004 12-08-21 Form 990 (2021)

5
11420426 136621 1003294.000 2021.05080 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIAN 10032941



Form 990 (2021) ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591

Page 5
[Part V| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (ontinued) :
Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisreturmn . 2a 9
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal emptoyment tax returns‘? eeereerenie 1 20 | X
Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file, See instructions. ..
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? USSR I | X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O rererereniseen. | 3D
4a Atany time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financialaccount)? | 4a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country B>
See instructions for filing requirements for FinGEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . 5b X
¢ If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100 000 and dtd tha orgamzatlon sollclt
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contribUtioNs? 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? . st seeesenns | OD
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a X
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . i L7
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was reqwred
to file Form 82827 - 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 fllec[ durlng the = T I 7d ]
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? Te X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? e ii X
g [f the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as requnred? 79
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIll, line12 T [ .
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facl!mes P ] )
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders | ..., |12
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received from them.) . ey 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the orgamzatlon flilng Form 990 in Ilsu Df Form 10417 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year .................. ‘ 12b |
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a |s the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O
b Enter the amount of reserves the arganization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans ... ... |13b
c Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for mdaortanmng services durmg tha tax year? T b ] X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? f "No," provide an explanation on Schedu,‘e (0] 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? y 15 X
If "Yes," see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
17  Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, any disqualified person, or mine operator engage in any
activities that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 49537 17
If "Yes," complete Form 6069.
132005 12-08-21 6 Form 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021) ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 page6
‘ Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure. rorgach "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No® response

to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI ..o
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear .. ... | 1a 4
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the gaverning
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule 0.

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent . [ 1b 4

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or key employee?

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision

of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form BBD was ﬁled?
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders?

7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persens who had the power to elect or appolnt one or
more members of the goveming body?

b Are any govermnance decisions of the organization reserved to (or sub]ect te approval by) members stockho!ders or
persons other than the governing body?

8 Did the organization contemporangously document the meetmgs hald or wrmen actmns undartaken dunng :he yaar hy the fnilowrng
The governing body? ... . 8a | X

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the gouemlng body? 8b
9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VI, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization's mailing address? |f "Yes " provide the names and addresses on Schedule ©  .oooeveeveeen... 9 X

4]

o |0 |&
COI e Ed b

>

7b

ocw

Section B. Policles his Secrion B requests information about policies not required by the Infernal Reverue Code)

Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? | ... e 10a X

b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? . ... ... .. |L10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 890 to all members of its governing body before mmg the forrn? 1a| X
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No, " go to line 13 . e 128 X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that cnuld gwe rise te cnnfllcts? i 112b X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? f "Yes," describe
on Schedule O how this was done ............. B S S e e s | |18 X
13  Did the organization have a written whmleblowerpoilcv’? SRR RTEI R L. -
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction pollcy? __________________________________________________________________ 14 | X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official i 1 15a X
Other officers or key employees of the organization TPy = = o) X
If “Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedu[a D See |nstructmns
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year?

16a X

b If "Yes," did the organization follow a wfmen pollcy or procedure reqmrlng tha organlzatron to eualuate |ts parhcupatlen
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s
exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . ... | 16b
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed P>MIN
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
[_] own website [ Ancther's website Upon request [_] other (explain on Schedule O)
19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records P>

THE ORGANIZATION - 651-481-9320
10 YORKTON COURT, ST PAUL, MN 55117

132006 12-08-21

Form 990 (2021)
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Page 7

Form 990 (2021) ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591
|Part Vlli Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl B
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

® | ist all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

@ |ist all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key employee.”

@ List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who received report-
able compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, Form 1089-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

® List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

® | jst all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

[:l Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average | . c,rli Sf::'{f:mn one Reportable Repoﬂabt.a Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer:and a desolorftrusles) from from related other
(list any g the organizations compensation
hours for | = = g organization (W-2/1098-MISC/ from the
related g g g (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| £ | 3 2. 1099-NEC) and related
below IR organizations
line) |E|E|5|5|2E| 5
(1) LISA DUNLAP 40.00
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR X 64,264. 0. 9,695.
(2) KIMBERLY ANDERSON 1.00
BOARD CHAIR X 05 0. 0.
(3) STEVE JEWETT 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(4) MICHELLE LUCAS 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(5) CHRISTY CROSBY 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
132007 12-09-21 Form 990 (2021)
8
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Form 990 (2021) ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591
|5art Vlii

Page 8
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Emplovees (continued)
(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average | Podtian. Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | pox, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustes) from from related other
(listany | 5 the organizations compensation
hours for % = organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related | 3| & 2 (W-2/1089-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| 2 § g |E 1099-NEC) and related
below [Z|£]|_ |2 g’:; . organizations
1b Subtotal ST 64,264. 0. 9,695.
c Totalfrom cnntmuatmn sheets to Part Vll Sectlon A T 0. 0. 0.
d Total (add lines 1b and 1c) .. 64,264. 0. 9,695,
2 Total number of individuals (mcludmg but not Itn'nted to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization B> 0
Yes | No
3  Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee an
line 1a? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensaunn and other compensatmn from the organlzatlon
and related organizations greater than $160,0007 Jf "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual .. e |4 X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or mdwldual for services
rendered to the organization? Jjf "Yes, " complete Schedule J for SUCH DEISON wovweeeeeeeeeririeeie o | 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1

Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
(A)

(B) (C)
Name and business address NONE Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization P> 0

Form 990 (2021)
132008 12-09-21
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Form 990 (2021) ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 Page 9
| Part VIII | Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total revenue | Related or exempt Unrelated Revenue excluded
function revenue |business revenue| from tax under
sections 512 - 514
1] 1 a Federated campaigns ... |1a
E b Membershipdues ... .. |ib
o ¢ Fundraisingevents .. |1ec
% d Related organizations ... 1d
o) e Govermnment grants (contributions) |1e| 3,335,682.
E f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
:,3 similar amounts not included above | 1f
& g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-11 | 1 [$
3 h Total. Addlines 1a-tf ..o » 3,335,682,
Business Code
§ R
z b
) c
g d
2 e
x f All other program service revenue . .
g Total. Add lines 2a-2f . . .. P
3  Investment income (ncludmg dlvldends interest, and
other similar amounts) N hids 53.
4  Income from investment of tax -exempt bond proceeds | 2
5 RoVaMies) .. oummmmmmnamma .
(i) Real (i) Personal
6a Grossrents . |6a
b Less: rental expenses __ |6b
¢ Rental income or (loss) | 6c
d Net rental income or (10S8) ... B
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (i) Other
assets other than inventory | 7a
b Less: cost or other basis
e and sales expenses 7b
E ¢ Gain or (loss) . (-
& d Net gain or (Ioss) T I———
G| 8a Grossincome from Iundraismg euents (not
g including $ of
contributions reported on line 1c). See
PartlV,line18 . ... |82
b Less: direct expenses 8b
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events sssianisn PP
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part IV, line19 ... |92
b Less: direct expenses . 9b
¢ Net income or (Joss) from gaming actl\.rltles T
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less retums
and allowances ... .. ... [0 260.
b Less: cost of goods sold _____________________ 10 0.
c_Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ... B> 260. 260.
. Business Code
§ 11a
‘=% b
d'j c
£ d Allotherrevenue .. . ...
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d >
12 Total revenue. See instructions » 3,335,995, 260. 0% 53a
182008 12-08-21 Form 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021)

ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE,

INC.

41-1406591

Piqe 10

[Part IX [ Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a respon

se or note to any line in this Part IX ..............

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, (A) B) C
75, 8, 90, and 106 of Pat Vil Vol pecian et | s e Fé‘Sééﬁ?éT-F
1  Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 2,891,095.] 2,891,095.
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4  Benefits paid to or formembers
5 Compensation of current officers, dlractors
trustees, and key employees 82,036. 75 ;292 6,744.
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Othersalaries and wages 225,824. 207,367. 18,457.
8  Pension plan aceruals and contributions (lnclude
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 3,061. 2,863. 198.
9 Other employee benefits . 14.136. 12,766 1,370.
10 Payrolltaxes ... 24,882. 23,031. 1,851.
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management
b olegal | ..,
¢ Accounting 15,100. 12,572. 2,428.
d Lobbying
e Professional Iundralsmg services. Sea Parl I'u' |1ne 17
f Investment management fees
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% oi Ime 25
column (A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.) 46,711. 45,721. 990.
12  Advertising and promotion
13 Office eXpenses ... 17,575. 16,192. 1,383.
14 Information technology ...
15 Royalties | ...
16 Occupancy . 28,152. 27,026. 1.,;126
17 Travel 11. 11.
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials ___
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest e
21 Payments to affiliates .
22 Depreciation, depletlon and amoriation: 2,666. 2,666.
23 Insurance 4,214. 4,045, 169.
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A),
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0. )
a EQUIP RENT AND MATINT 9,148. 8,753 395.
b MISCELLANEOUS 1,310 1,310.
c
d
e All other expenses
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 3,365,921.| 3,326,823. 39,098. 0.
26  Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization
reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check hers B [ ] if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)
132010 12-09-21 Form 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021)

ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC.

41-1406591 page 11

| Part X | Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X ...

132011 12-09-21

11420426 136621 1003294.000

12

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cagh-noMBESEBORING ..coivimiinmmiimimmansssiie 29,589.| 1 17,238.
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 142,683.| 2 117,736.
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 264,516.| 3 294 ,448.
4  Accounts receivable, net 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons o 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)@3)(B) ... 6
@ | 7 Notesandloansreceivable,net 7
@ | 8 Inventoriesforsaleoruse .. . 726.] 8 617.
< 9 Prepaid expenses and da!erred charges 948.| o 421,
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 26,428.
b Less: accumulated depreciation S 26,428. 2,666.]10c 0.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities 130,875.] 1 100,518.
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 _________________________________________ 12
13 Investments - program-related. See Part \V, line 11 . 13
14  Intangible assets . 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, 1|ne '11 15
16 _Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must egual\ne:ss) 572,003.] 16 530,978.
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 16,295.] 17 15,512,
18 Grants payable ... 231,462.] 18 258,769.
19 Deferred revenue . ... ... . 68,387.] 19 68 ,387.
20 Tax-exempt bond 1|ab|ht|es 20
21 Escrow or custodial account Ilablhty Gomplete Part N of Schedule D 21
@ 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
= trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
'-E controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22
=] 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 7,266.] 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related thlrd
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D ... 25
26 Total liabilities. Add Iines 17 throuqh 25 e ) 323,410.]| 26 342,668.
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here ) -
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
§ |27  Netassets without donor restrictions ... _..............cccooooooeromororoeeseieinren. 248,593.( 27 188,310.
g 28 Netassets with donor restrictions ... ... 28
2 Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here P |:]
'-E and complete lines 29 through 33.
g 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . 29
@ [ 80 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equlpment fund 30
& |31 Retained earmings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 31
8 | 32 Totalnetassets orfund balances ... . 248,593.| 32 188,310.
__ 133 Totalliabilities and net assets/fund balances 572,003.] a3 530,978.
Form 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021) ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591

Page 12
| Part XI [ Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response of note to any lineinthis Part Xl _................................ D
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1 3,335,995,
2  Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 3,365,921.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 L 3 -29,926.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X fine 32 cokinmn (A}) ______________________________ 4 248,593.
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5 -30,357.
6 Donated services and use of facilities e |8
7 Investment 8XPENSES | .. .. ... 7
8 Prior period adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances {explaln on Schedule O) 9 0.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X ||ne 32
column (B) .. 10 188,310.
| Part XII| Financial Statements and Reportlng
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII ... X1
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash Accrual I:l Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain on Schedule O.
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? e, |22 X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
D Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b | X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audlted ona separate ba5|s
consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
¢ If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c| X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on Schedule 0
3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit
Actand OMB GircUIar ATTBB7 || ..ttt b e st es ettt e 3a| X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits 3| X
Form 990 (2021)
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SCHEDULE A

. . . OMB Na. 1545-0047
I Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 202 1
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
Department of tha Treasury > Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ, Open to Public
Internial Bevendis Sirvice P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization

Employer identification number

ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591
| Part | l Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 [__] A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
[ ] Aschool described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)
L1a hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b){1)(A)(iii).

[ ] A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:

ES S ]

W

0 00 B0 O

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)
A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part I1.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)
An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:

10 An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from

activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment

income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part lIl.)

11 I:l An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 D An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box on
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a D Type |. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b i:l Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c D Type |l functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d D Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a disttibution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [ Checkthis box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type II, Type lll
functionally integrated, or Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of supported organizations | ... .. ..ottt et s enans I
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization iM T The ”'ﬂ?"‘ls["’" 'S'Gtﬂ? (v) Amount of monetary {vi) Amount of other
organization (described on lines 1-10 (LT COOURER support (see instructions) | support (see instructions)
above (see instructions)) Yes No
Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 132021 01-04-22 Schedule A (Form 990) 2021



Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 page2
| Part i | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part lll. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lll.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) B (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 (e) 2021
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and

membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.") | 3268768.| 3132684.| 2706420.| 2876057.| 3335682.[15319611.
2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge
4 Total. Addlines1through3 | 3268768.| 3132684.| 2706420.] 2876057.| 3335682.[15319611.
5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,

(f) Total

coumn(®
6 Public snﬂgport Subtract ine 5 from line 4. 5319611.
Section B. Total Support
Galendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p» (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2018 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 (f) Total
7 Amountsfromlined | 3268768.| 3132684.| 2706420.| 2876057.| 3335682.[15319611.

.8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources 13,046. 424 . 226. 65. h3. 13,814.

9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the

business is regularly carried on

10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part V1.

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 5333425.
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) 12 I 15,584.
13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, thtrd fourth or hfth tax year asa sectlon 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here _........ e hneeehieiiiseieiehsesssssiissiieississemsiesmsiissntiimsssiiscssisimsismnmseiesesicsaneesee P D

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2021 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column ) ... ... |14 99.91
15 Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part |, line 14 15 99.83 «
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2021. If the organization did not check the box on ||ne 13 and Ilne 14 is 33 1!3% or more, check this box and

stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization N }
b 33 1/3% support test - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 1Ga and hne 15 is 33 1.-’3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization T

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2021, If the organization did not check a box on Ilne 13 1Ga or 16b and Ilna 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization T |:|
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2020, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a and ||ne 15is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the

organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization P D
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see |nstruchons sszeae I i:l

Schedule A (Form 990) 2021
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 pages
| Part lll | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization failsto
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 11.)
Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P> (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2018 (d) 2020 (e) 2021
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and

membership fees received. (Do not

include any "unusual grants.”)

(f) Total

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-
iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total, Add lines 1 through5 .. ...

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and

3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
axceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

c Add lines 7aand 7b

8 Public support. (Sublctline ¢ from ling 6.
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 (f) Total
9 Amounts fromline6 ...
10a Gross income from mtereat
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources
b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

c Add lines 10aand 10b .

11 Net income from umelated bi.lslness
activities not included on line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carried on

12 Other income. Do not include galn
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part VI.) oo

13 Total support. (Add lines 8, 10¢, 11, and 12))

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

check this box and stop here ......... e, |
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2021 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f) ... |15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part lll, line 15 R s sas 18 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2021 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, coluran () ... 117 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part lll, line 17 N 18 %
19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2021. [f the organization did not check the box on line 14, and Ime 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... P |:|

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... P D

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions _...........
132023 01-04-22
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 Pages
[ Part IV | Supporting Organizations

(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A

and B. If you checked box 12b, Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12¢, Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? Jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? I "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? /f “Yes," answer
lines 3b and 3c below.

3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)4), (5), or (6) and

satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? |f "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination. 3b
¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)

purposes? |f "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization"}? f
"Yes," and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? /f "Yes, " describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)7 If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used

to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
pLIrposes.

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? f "Yes,"
answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in PartVl, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b Type | or Type ll only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing document?

4c

5b
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5c
6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (j) its supported organizations, (ji) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? [f "Yes," provide detail in
Part VI 6
7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? Jf "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line 77
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 8
9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? /f "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? | "Yes, " provide detail in Part VL. ob
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI, 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type |l supporting organizations, and all Type lll non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? Jf "Yes," answer line 10b below. 10a

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

sther the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

132024 01-04-21 Schedule A (Form 990) 2021
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 Ppages
[Part IV Supporting Organizations (continued) ]

Yes | No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described on line 11a above?
¢ A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? 7 "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11¢, provide
detail in Part VI.
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

11b

11c

Yes | No

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? |f "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? f "Yes," explain in

Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,

ization 2

i irolled 1t .
Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? if "No," describe in Part VI how control

or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed

—the supported organization(s).
Section D. All Type Ill Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 980 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (jii) copies of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the govering body of a supported organization? |f "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization's supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax year? |f "Yes, " describe in Part VI the role the organization's

! - laved in thi "
Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a [__] The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.

b \:i The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 pelow.

¢ [Jhe organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructiong),
2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes | No

a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? [f "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement,
one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If "Yes, " explain in
Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in
these activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? |f "Yes" or "No" provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? Jf " . i Part VI ization i d. 3b
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 pages
I Part V | Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 |: Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 ( explain in Part V). See instructions.
All other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)
7 Other expenses (see instructions)

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8

@ |t |& | N =
L IR (0

=7}

~!

B!
Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ( )%L'{i:::,ta;ea'

1 Agaregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
Average monthly value of securities 1a
Average monthly cash balances 1b
Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c) 1id
Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(explain in detail in Part VI):
Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets
Subtract line 2 from line 1d.
Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions). :
Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)
Multiply line 5 by 0.035.
Recoveries of prior-year distributions
Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

o | |0 ||

Ly+]

w
W

EN

w |~ |3 |
W |~ |3 |

Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)
Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)
Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6

=200 (5 00 E (M | S
[0 B [ LI B

7 [ Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Il supporting organization (see
instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990) 2021
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 Ppage7
[PartV | Type lil Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)
Section D - Distributions

Current Year
1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity 2
3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 4
5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval requited - provide details in Part V1) 5
6 Other distributions (degcribe in Part VI). See instructions. 6
7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part V). See instructions. 8
9  Distributable amount for 2021 from Section G, line 6 9
10  Line 8 amount divided by line 8 amount 10
o Und d'ui]'b i Di !;ii} bl
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions h e;rés_gé 2‘_‘:"’“5 Am::i::t ;‘;? 2;2 1

1 Distributable amount for 2021 from Section C, line 6
2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2021 (reason-
able cause required - explain in Part VI). See instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2021
a From 2016
b_From 2017
¢ From 2018
d From 2019
e From 2020
f Total of lines 3a through 3e
g _Applied to underdistributions of prior years
h_Applied to 2021 distributable amount
i Carryover from 2016 not applied (see instructions)
j _Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.
4 Distributions for 2021 from Section D,

line 7: $
a_Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b _Applied to 2021 distributable amount
¢ _Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2021, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2021. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2022, Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2017

Excess from 2018

Excess from 2019

Excess from 2020

Excess from 2021

o o |0 ||
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 pages

| Part VI | Supplemental Information. provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part Il line 17a or 17b; Part lll, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part \/, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)
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** PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY **

Schedule B Schedule of Contributors OMB No. 16450047
(Farm:a0a) B Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-PF.

Department of the Troasury P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form980 for the latest information. 202 1
Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591
Organization type (check one):
Filers of: Section:
Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization

Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

00000

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

|:| For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or
property) from any one contributor. Complete Paris | and II. See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under
sections 508(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990), Part I, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from any one

contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h;
or (i) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and Il

[ ] Foran organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | (entering
"N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), Il, and Il

D For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box
is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,

purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively
religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more duringtheyear ... ... ... P §

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990), but it must
answer "No" on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 980; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to certify
that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990).

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 9980, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 980) (2021)
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Schedule B (Form 990) (2021) Page 2

Name of organization Employer identification number

ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591

Partl  Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Nao. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

= Person
Payroll ]
$ 3,335,192, Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)

No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

Person |:|
Payroll [:!
$ Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)

No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

Person D
Payroll ]
4 Noncash [ |
(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)

No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

Person |:|
Payroll [ |
$ Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)

. No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

Person D
Payrall ]
$ Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)

No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

Person I:'
Payroll [ |
$ Noncash [ ]

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
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Schedule B (Form 980) (2021)

Page 3

Name of organization

ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC.

Employer identification number

41-1406591

Partll Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

(a)

(e)

Mo, . (b) . FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given I Date received
Part | (See instructions.)

(a)

(c)

Nels e (b) . FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given ; 3 Date received
Part | (See instructions.)

(a)

(c)

fl:l:r;-. Deserintion of (b) X _ FMV (or estimate) Dat. (d) 4
" escription of noncash property given (Sea instructions) ate receive

(a)

(c)

f:l:é D e ¢ (b) h . FMV (or estimate) Dot (d) ived
o] escription of noncash property given {Ses instructions:) ate receive

(a)

(c)

fN:r;‘ D inti f (b) h . FMV (or estimate) Dat (@ ved
prar“ escription of noncash property given Ses instructions) ate receive

(a)

(c)

Sl ) () _ FMV (or estimate) d
from Description of noncash property given instructi Date received
Part | (See instructions.)
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Schedule B (Form 990) (2021) Page 4
Name of organization

Employer identification number

ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591
Part lll  Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year
from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e} and the following line entry. For arganizations
completing Part Ill, enter the tolal of exclusively religious, charilable, etc., contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter thisinfo. once) »$
Use duplicate copies of Part |ll if additional space is needed.

(a) No. '
l!'rorTl (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
al
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
;rﬂr“ (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
al
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
IfT‘mrTl (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
a
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
lngrl‘tnl (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
al
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
123454 11-11-21 Schedule B (Form 890) (2021)
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements L e

(Form 990) P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 202 1
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11¢, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. .
Department of the Treasury } Attach to Form 990. Open to Public

Internal Revenua Servica P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form980 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization

Employer identification number

ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, TINC. 41-1406591

] Part | ] Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. cComplete if the

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

L4

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number atend of year . ..
Aggregate value of contributions to (durlng year)
Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
Aggregate value at end of year
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . . . .. . ... D Yes D No
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can ba used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

impermissible private benefit? ........... - — D Yes D No
l Part ll I Conservation Easements- Complete |f the organlzatlon answered "Yes" on Form 990 Part I\.-‘ Ilne ?
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
|:| Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) |:| Preservation of a historically important land area
D Protection of natural habitat D Preservation of a certified historic structure
|:| Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last
day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation asements | .. ... |28
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements | e 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure includedin (@) ... = (| 2E
d Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic structure
listed in the National Register . 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modlf[ed transferred released extlngmshed or termlnated by the organlzatlon during the tax
yearp
4  Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located p
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? |:| Yes [ INo
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of umlatlens and enforcmg coneervatmn easements during the year
| 2
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
| ]
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(@)(B)(i)
and section 170R)A)B)W? .................... e, 1 Yes [ No
9

In Part Xlll, describe how the organization reporrs consenraﬂon easements in |ts revenue and expense statement and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the

organization's accounting for conservation easements
| Part lll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part Xlll the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of

art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenue included on Form 890, Part VIl line 1 . ., P8
(i) Assets included in Form 990, Part X .. ... T
2 If the organization received or held works of art, hlstorlcal treasures or other samllar assets fcr financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:
a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIl line 1. P $
b _Assets included in Form 990, Part X |
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instn.lr:.tlons for Form 990.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2021
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2021 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLTIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 Page2
| Partlll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (ontinued)
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):
[] Public exhibition d [ ]Loanor exchange program
b [] Scholarly research e [_]other
c D Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XII.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? ............................. El Yes D No

[Part IV | Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on e 990 Part IV, line 8, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included

on Form 990, PartX? . e L .
b If "Yes," explain the arrangemem in Part Xlll and complete the fol!owlng table

Amount
¢ Beginnng balAGe: o R R e, 1) 16
d Additionsdudngtherysar ... c.oo e nnnnnnana e s 1d
e Distributions during the year 1e
f Ending balance .. 1f
2a Did the organization mclude an amcunt on Fcrm 990 Part X I1ne 21 for escrow or custodlal account IIablllly? [ Tves El No
b _If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XlIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part Xl
| PartV I Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10,
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance
Contributions

Net investment earnings, gains, and losses

Grants or scholarships ...

o o OO

Other expenditures for facilities
and programs

-

Administrative expenses
g End of year balance .
2  Provide the estimated percentage ef the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment P %
b Permanent endowment P %
¢ Term endowment P %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c¢ should equal 100%.

3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization

by: Yes | No
(i) Unrelated organizations _,.............cccccccoomiiomieiiieicessis st sessse st ssemsssessessssnnessensesssnnnensennsee | SBU)
(i) Related organizations . . . TSRO -1 11
b If "Yes" on line 3a(ji), are the related erganlzatlons ||sted as requ:red on Schedule R? L8
4 Describe in Part Xlll the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.
| Part VI |Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (a) Cost or other {b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation
Ta Land s
b Buildings ...,
¢ Leasehold improvements .. ...
d Equipment 26 7 428. 26, 428. 0.
e Other ..
Total. Add Ilnes 1aihr0uqh 1e (CMMWWM 10¢) . i P 0.
Schedule D (Form 990) 2021
132052 10-28-21
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2021 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 page3

| Part VII| Investments - Other Securities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (including name of security)

(b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives

(2) Closely held equity Lnterests

(38) Other

(A)

_(B)

(@]

(D)

(H)

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 980, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) p>

Part VIIl| Investments - Program Related.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment

(b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

— (8

(9)

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) B>

| Part IX [ Other Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description

(b) Book value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

@

(8)

(9)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B)ling 15.) ..oooooeiiiiiiiii i

.

\PartX | Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990 Part X, line 25.

1, (a) Description of liability

(b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes

(2)

@)

Q)]

(5)

(6)

(7

@)

©)

Total. (Column (h) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (BIliN@ 25.) .cocccovceve..

W

2, Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XlII, provide the text of the footnote to ihe organlzatlon s fmanmal statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIIl . |:|

132053 10-28-21
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2021 ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591 paged
| Part XI | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements s 1 3,305,638.
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 890, Part VIII, line 12:
a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments ... |2a -30,357.
b Donated services and use of facilities ... | 2b
¢ Recoveries of prior yeargrants ... |2
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d el L -30,357.
8 Subtact ke BeTOmMINET o s s 3] 35335985,
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vlll,line7b ... [ 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XlIL.) 4b
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b T e 0.
Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. 5 3,335,995,

(This must equal Form 990, Part |, line 12
] Part Xl ] Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements s
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

1 3,365,821,

a Donated services and use of facilities ... ... |2
b Prior year adjustments 2b
c Otherlosses .. ... 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIL) ... 20
e Add lines 2a through 2d et e e erre s eereenns |28 0.
3 Subtract ine 2 oM INE 1 || | .. oo a | 3,365,921.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VI, line 7b . | 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XIIL.) 4b
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 0.
Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. nnﬁmmmgam._m 13} 5 3,365,921,
| Part Xlll| Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

132054 10-28-21 Schedule D (Form 990) 2021
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] OMB No. 1545-0047
SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 8
(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 202 1
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. :
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open tq Public
Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.qov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

INDIVIDUALS OF ALL AGES, WITH THE EXPECTATION THAT THE QUALITY OF LIFE

FOR ALL PERSONS WILL BE IMPROVED.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 8B:

NOT APPLICABLE; NO COMMITTEE MEETINGS

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:

THE FORM 990 WILL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRIOR

TO BEING FILED.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

DOCUMENTS ARE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC BY REQUEST.

FORM 990, PART XII, LINE 2C:

THE PROCESS FOR SELECTING AN INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT, AND MONITORING THE

AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HAS NOT CHANGED FROM THE PRIOR YEAR.

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990) 2021
182211 11-11-21
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Fom 8868 Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an
(Rev. January 2022) Exempt Organization Return

Deaiticiait abilie Tidasin P> File a separate application for each return.
Internal Revenus Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form8868 for the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of time to file any of the
forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit
Contracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic
filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/e-file-providers/e-file-for-charities-and-non-profits.

Automatic 6-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (ho copies needed).

All corporations required to file an income tax return other than Form 990-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts
must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file income tax returns.

Type or | Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions. Taxpayer identification number (TIN)
print
—_—— ADULTS & CHILDRENS ALLIANCE, INC. 41-1406591

ila by tha

dusdatefor | Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions.
ko yaur 10 YORKTON COURT

;:;::ci?::& City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions.
ST. PAUL, MN 55117
Enter the Return Code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application foreach return) . | 0 ‘ 1 [
Application Return | Application Return
Is For Code | Is For Code
Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 1041-A 08
Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 (other than individual) 09
Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11
Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12
Form 990-T (corporation) 07
THE ORGANIZATION
® The booksareinthe careof p» 10 YORKTON COURT - ST PAUL, MN 55117
Telephone No.p» 651-481-9320 Fax No. B>
@ |f the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check thisbox . . B D

® |f this is for a Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) . If this is for the whole group, check this
box B [__|.Ifitis for part of the group, check this box [ | and attach a list with the names and TINs of all members the extension is for.

1 I request an automatic 6-month extension of time until AUGUST 15, 2023 , to file the exempt organization return for
the organization named above. The extension is for the organization's return for:
B[] calendar year or
P [X] taxyear beginning OCT 1, 2021 ,andending SEP 30, 2022

2  Ifthe tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: [ initial return [ Final retum

[ ] Change in accounting period

3a If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6068, enter the tentative tax, less
any nonrefundable credits. See instructions.
b If this application is for Forms 980-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b| $ 0.

3a| $ 0.

¢ Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by
using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3| $ 0.
Gaution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-TE and Form 8879-TE for payment
instructions.

LHA  For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2022)

123841 01-12-22
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
St. Paul, Minnesota

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc., which comprise the
statements of financial position as of September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of

activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc. as of September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc. and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to

our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
i crror.

| In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
| or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Adults & Childrens Alliance,

Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

BERGANKDV, LTD. | BERGANKDV.COM | DO MORE, 1



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the

aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

s Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

BERGANKDV, LTD. | BERGANKDV.COM | DO MORE. 2



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report April 20, 2023, on
our consideration of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

&L/jmwlf, Id.

St. Cloud, Minnesota
April 20, 2023

BERGANKDV, LTD. | BERGANKDV.COM | DO MORE. 3



Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Statements of Financial Position
As of September 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 134974  § 172272
Investments 100,518 130,875
Grants receivable 294,448 264,516
Other assets 1,038 1,674
Total current assets 530,978 569,337
Equipment, net - 2,666
Total assets $ 530,978 _$ 572,003
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities
Current maturities on long-term debt $ - $ 7,266
Accounts payable - 1,380
Providers payable 258,769 231,462
Other accrued liabilities 15,512 14,915
Refundable advances 68,387 68,387
Total current liabilities 342,668 323,410
Net assets
Without donor restrictions 188,310 248,593
Total liabilities and net assets $ 530,978 $ 572,003

See notes to financial statements. 4



Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Statements of Activities

Years Ended September 30,2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Support and Revenues
Grant revenue
CACFP provider payments $ 2,890,569 $ 2,376,376
CACFP administration reimbursements 444,623 435,801
Other grant revenue 490 1,540
Contributions - 2,396
Gain on extinguishment of debt - PPP loan - - 59,944
Sales of program products, net of direct costs 260 (691)
Investment return, net (30,304) 29,676
Total support and revenues 3,305,638 2,905,042
Expenses
Program services 3,326,823 2,824,432
Management and general 39,098 59,525
Total expenses 3,365,921 2,883,957
Change in net assets (60,283) 21,085
Net Assets
Beginning of year 248,593 227,508
End of year $ 188,310 _$ 248,593

See notes to financial statements.



Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended September 30, 2022

Salaries

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Provider payments
Contract services
Professional fees
Supplies

Telephone
Occupancy
Equipment rental and maintenance
Postage and shipping
Printing and design
Travel

Insurance
Miscellaneous
Depreciation

Total expenses

See notes to financial statements.

Program Management
Services and General Total
$ 275579 $ 24529  § 300,108
22,709 2,240 24,949
23,031 1,851 24,882
2,891,095 - 2,891,095
45,721 990 46,711
12,672 2,428 15,100
2,972 349 3,321
7,801 870 8,671
27,026 1,126 28,152
8,753 395 9,148
3,590 115 3,705
1,829 49 1,878
- I 11
4,045 169 4,214
E 1,310 1,310
- 2,666 2,666
$ 3,326,823 $ 39,098 _$  3.365.921




Adults & Childrens Alliance, Ine.
Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended September 30, 2021

Salaries

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

Provider payments

Contract services

Professional fees

Supplies

Telephone

Occupancy

Equipment rental and maintenance
Postage and shipping

Printing and design

Travel

Insurance

Cost of goods sold - program products
Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total expenses
Less expenses included with revenues
on the statement of activities

Cost of goods sold - program products

Total expenses included in the expenses section
on the statement of activities

See notes to financial statements.

Program Management
Services and General Total
$ 302,500 $ 39,042 $ 341,542
18,509 5,254 23,763
22,293 2,786 25,079
2,374,827 - 2,374,827
41,508 754 42,262
11,875 2,425 14,300
2,919 98 3,017
8,164 349 8,513
23,477 2,623 26,100
5,847 395 6,242
3,952 - 3,484
3,052 135 3,187
120 - 120
4,080 216 4,296
1,490 - 1,490
1,309 118 1,895
- 5,330 5,330
2,825,922 59,525 2,885,447
(1,490) - (1,490)
$ 2,824,432 $ 59,525 $ 2,883,957




Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Cash Flows - Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ (60,283) § 21,085
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash flows - operating activities
Depreciation 2,666 5,330
Gain on extinguishment of debt - PPP loan - (59,944)
Net unrealized (gain) loss on investments 30,357 (29,612)
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Grants receivable (29,932) (26,190)
Other assets 636 644
Accounts payable (1,380) (1,035)
Providers payable 27,307 30,323
Other accrued liabilities 597 14,558
Refundable advances i 20,124
Total adjustments 30,251 (45,802)
Net cash flows - operating activities (30,032) (24,717)
Cash Flows - Financing Activities
Principal payments on long-term debt (7,266) (2,090)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (37,298) (26,807)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning of year 172272 199,079
End of year $ 134974  § 172,272

See notes to financial statements. 8



Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc. (the Organization) is a nonprofit organization operating exclusively
for charitable and educational purposes and incorporated in 1981 under the laws of the State of
Minnesota. The purpose of the Organization is to be a source of public education, information, services
and research regarding parents, families, children and those persons and organizations who provide
services to them; by providing services which facilitate the psychological and physical development of
individuals of all ages, with the expectation that the quality of life for all persons will be improved.

The Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) is the major activity of the Organization. The
program involves the sponsorship of approximately 420 licensed family childcare homes within the
CACEFP operated by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) and administered by the Minnesota
Department of Education (MDE). The Organization is required to train, monitor, reimburse certain food
costs, and maintain information supplied by the providers under the terms of the agreements.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include highly liquid investments, with original maturities of three months or less, that
are recorded at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market.

Investments

The Organization considers financial instruments with a maturity greater than three months to be
investments. Investments are valued using fair value methods. Net investment return is reported on the
statement of activities and consists of interest and dividend income, realized and unrealized gains and
losses, less external and direct internal investment expenses. Investments are exposed to various risks
such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that change in the values of investment securities will occur
in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the investment balance.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable are government and pass-through grants received subsequent to September 30, 2022
and 2021, and specifically allocated to the Organization's operations for 2022 and 2021. No allowance is
deemed necessary due to the nature of the government grants.



Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Concentrations of Credit Risk
Financial instruments which potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash, cash equivalents, and grant receivables. The Organization places its cash and cash

equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions. At times, the Organization's cash and cash
equivalents are in excess of the FDIC insurance limit.

The Organization receives substantially all of its support from MDE. A significant reduction in the level
of this support could have a major effect on the Organization's programs, activities, and ability to
leverage other federal and private grants. Revenue from MDE comprises 99% and 97% of total support

and revenue for 2022 and 2021, respectively, and the entire balance of grants receivable for the years
ended September 30, 2022 and 2021.

Equipment

Equipment carried at cost, or fair value if donated, with depreciation computed under the straight-line
method over the economic useful lives of the assets. The Organization follows the policy of capitalizing
all property and equipment expenditures over $1,000 and an estimated useful life over one year. The

funding sources have a reversionary interest in the equipment purchased with grant funds. Dispositions
and ownership of any proceeds are subject to funding source requirements.

Providers Payable

Providers payable represents amounts of claims submitted by providers after year end related to meals

provided through September 30 and paid by the Organization in subsequent months upon receipt of
funds from the granting agency.

Refundable Advances

Refundable advances includes advance payments for subsequent year CACFP administration

reimbursements as well as allowed carryover of CACFP administrative funds not spent in the previous
year.

Paycheck Protection Program Loan

The Organization followed the Financial Accounting Standards Board's (FASB) Topic 470, Debt in
accounting for its Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan. The proceeds from the loan remained as a
liability until forgiven. Once the loan was forgiven and legal release was received, the Organization
reduced the liability by the amount forgiven and recorded a gain on extinguishment.

Net Assets

Net assets, support and revenues are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor-
imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor or grantor restrictions.
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Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Net Assets (Continued)
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by
the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that
resources be maintained in perpetuity. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as
increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends, or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is
recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets

without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Revenue Recognition

The majority of the Organization's revenue is in the form of federal grants connected to its sponsorship
of the CACFP. Sponsors of the CACFP receive both administrative reimbursements and meal payments
for disbursement to providers which are conditioned upon the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. The Organization recognizes these reimbursements as revenue when expenditures in
compliance with program provisions have been incurred and approved by the MDE on behalf of the
USDA. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances
in the statement of financial position. The Organization received cost-reimbursement grants of $467,688
and $429,030 for administrative reimbursements, respectively, that have not been recognized as of
September 30, 2022 and 2021, because qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred, with an

advance payment of $25,000 each year, recognized in the statement of financial position as a refundable
advance.

Contributions and grants are recognized when cash, securities, or other assets, an unconditional promise
to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give, that is, those

with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized until the
conditions on which they depend have been substantially met.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a nonprofit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is exempt from federal income taxes pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the program and supporting services have been summarized on a functional basis
in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification
detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the program and
supporting services benefited and are based on an estimate of full-time employees for occupancy,

contracted services, etc. Estimates of actual usage is used to allocate postage and supplies. Salaries and
benefits are based on time spent.
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Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The new guidance will
require all leases to be recorded as assets and liabilities on the statement of financial position. This
update requires capitalization of "right-of-use assets" and recognition of an obligation for future lease
payments for most leases currently classified as operating leases. In June 2020, the FASB issued ASU
2020-05 which defers the effective date one year making it effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption permitted. The provisions of this ASU are to be

applied using the modified retrospective approach. The Organization is currently evaluating the impact
this standard will have on its financial statements.

Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through April 20, 2023, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting

their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise of the following as of
September 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents $ 134,974 $ 172,272
Investments 100,518 130,875
Grants receivable 294,448 264,516
Total financial assets available for general expenditures $ 529,940 $ 567,663

The Organization does not have a formal liquidity policy, however it structures its financial assets to be
available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. In addition, as part of its

liquidity management, the Organization invests cash in excess of daily requirements in various short-
term investments.
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Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inec.
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value measurement accounting literature establishes a valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the

inputs to valuation used to measure fair value. This hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three broad
levels as follows:

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs are quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are

observable, either directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for substantially the
full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs based on the Organization's own assumptions used to
measure assets and liabilities at fair value.

A financial asset or liability's classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The Organization's investments consist of mutual funds, which are measured at fair value based on
quoted market prices on active exchanges and as such classified as Level 1.

NOTE 4 - EQUIPMENT

Equipment consisted of the following as of September 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Equipment $ 26,428 $ 26428
Less accumulated depreciation 26,428 23,762
Equipment, net $ - $ 2,666

NOTE 5 - RETIREMENT PLAN

Employees of the Organization participate in a defined confribution retirement plan covering
substantially all employees. Under the plan, the Organization matches 50% on the first 3% of a
participant's eligible compensation. The plan also allows for discretionary profit-sharing contributions.
There were no profit sharing contributions for the years ended 2022 and 2021. The Organization made
matching contributions of $4,174 and $4,308 for 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 6 — OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases office space and certain equipment, the last which expires in 2024, under

noncancelable operating leases. Total lease expense for 2022 and 2021 was $33,207 and $29,403,
respectively.

13



Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 6 — OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

Future minimum lease payments are as follows for the years ending September 30:

2023 $ 33,066
2024 11,701
Total minimum future lease payments $ 44,767

NOTE 7 - CONTINGENCY

The Organization operates in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the Organization are
subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory
agencies, including, but not limited to, the USDA and MDE. Such administrative directives, rules, and
regulations are subject to change by an act of congress or an administrative change mandated by USDA
or MDE. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the additional administrative burden, to comply with a change. To the extent that any
expenditures are disallowed, a liability to the respective federal or state agency could result.

NOTE 8 - PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In May 2020, the Organization applied for and obtained a $69,300 PPP loan, administered by the U.S.
Small Business Administration established under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
(CARES) Act. Under the terms of the loan, the Organization could apply for and be granted forgiveness
for a portion or all of the loan. In order to meet the conditions for forgiveness, the Organization was
required to maintain certain employee levels and use the proceeds on eligible expenses including
payroll, benefits, rent, and utilities within a specified period. The loan was partially forgiven by the SBA
in July 2021, at which time the Organization recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt. The
remaining balance was paid off in 2022.

The Organization must retain all records relating to the loan for six years from the date of forgiveness
and must permit authorized representatives of the SBA, including representatives of its Office of
Inspector General, to access such files upon request.

NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In February 2023, the Organization extended the office operating lease agreement through January 2024,
The future minimum lease payments in Note 6 have been updated to reflect this.
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Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2022

Pass-Through

Assistance Entity
Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Listing Identifying
Grantor / Program or Cluser Title / Project Name Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Pass through from Minnesota Department of Education

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 8-013-503-4 $ 3,217,686
COVID-19 Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 8-013-503-4 117,506
3,335,192

Total expenditures of federal awards $ 3,335,192

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 16



Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended September 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Adults & Childrens Alliance,

Inc. it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc..

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting, which conform to

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Such expenditures are

recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc. has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

17
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
St. Paul, Minnesota

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Adults & Childrens
Alliance, Inc., which comprise the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2022, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 20, 2023.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Adults & Childrens
Alliance, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Adults &
Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc. financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. We
did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the schedule of findings and questioned
costs as items 2022-001 and 2022-002 that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. '

Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s Responses to Findings
Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s responses

were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Adults &
Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Adults & Childrens

Alliance, Inc.'s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

k&jmmf, 14

St. Cloud, Minnesota
April 20, 2023
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
Program and on Internal Control over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Board of Directors
Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.
St. Paul, Minnesota

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion

We have audited Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2022. Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended September 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc. and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Adults
& Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of

laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Adults &
Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s federal programs.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report

on compliance about Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s internal control over compliance
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Adults &

Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompany schedule
of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-003. Our opinion on each major federal program is not
modified with respect to these matters. Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform
limited procedures on Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s response to the internal control over
compliance finding identified in our audit described in the accompany schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s response was not subjected to the other auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in

the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-003, to be a significant
deficiency.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. Government Auditing Standards
requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s response to the
internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit described in the accompany schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.'s response was not subjected to the

other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

%mwz 1l

St. Cloud, Minnesota
April 20, 2023
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Adults & Childrens Alliance, Inc.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued on whether the financial statements

audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP

Internal control over financial reporting:
e Material weakness(es) identified?
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs
e Material weakness(es) identified?
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of Major Federal Programs

Assistance Listing No.:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs?

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?

Unmodified
None
Yes

No

None
Yes

Unmodified

No

10.558

Child and Adult Care Food

Program

$750,000

No
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